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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Mayor and Village Board
Village of Mt. Zion
Mt, Z2ion, Illinois

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying modified cash basis financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and aggregate
remaining fund information of the Village of Mt. Zion, Illineis, as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Village's financial statements as listed in the table
of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting
described in Note 1A; this includes determining that the modified cash basis of
accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statements in
the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsgibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
Preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the government’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

334 West Eldorado Street, Decatur, IL 62522-2192 131a South Vine Street, Arthur, IL 61911-1335 _
(217) 428-2127 Fax (217) 428-5915 {217) 543-2184 Fax (217) 543-2185




Mayor and Village Board
Village of Mt. Zion
Page Two

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective modified cash basis financial position of the
governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Village of Mt. Zion, Illinois, as of December 31,
2017, and the respective changes in modified cash basis financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the
modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1A.

Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1A of the financial statements, which describes the basis
of accounting. The financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of
accounting, which is a special purpose framework other than accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinions are not modified
with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinicns on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the Village of Mt. Zion, Illinois’ financial
statements. The schedules listed as “supplementary information” and “other
information (unaudited)” in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and aré not a required part of the financial statements.

The schedules listed as “supplementdry information® are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the schedules listed as Ysupplementary
information” are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
financial statements as a whole,

The schedules listed as “other information (unaudited)” in the table of contents have
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them,

Yours very truly,

/1 e, Joly i nn + LU T

McGUIRE, YUHAS, HUFFMAN & BUCKLEY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

Decatur, Illinois

June 18, 2018




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOQIS

STATEMENT CF NET POSITION
MODIFIED CASH BASIS

Degember 31, 2017

ASSETS

Current Assats
Cash and Cash Equivalents §
Coxtificates of Depcait
Municipal Bonds
IMET Liquidated Truat Regeivable
Prepaid Payroll Taxes
Accounts Receivabla (net of allowanca
for doubtful accounks)
Internal Balanceg
Regtricted Cash in Hscrow

Total Current Assets

Non-Currzaent Agsets
Land, Property, Plant and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Land, Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible Asset
Sewer System Annexation Coat (Net of
Accumulated Amortization of §$943,517)

Tetal Non-Current Assets
Total hssats
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
NHotes Payvable - currsnt
Bonds Payable - curremt

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilitios
Netes Payable = noh-current
Bondas Payable - non-current

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET POSITICN

Nat Investment in Capital RAssets

Restricted for: Police )
Straet and Alley Maintenance
Audit
Social Security Tax
Liability Insuranae
IMRF
School Creossing Guard
Unemployment Compensation
Capital Projecta
Special Tax Capital Projects
Debt Service

Unrestricted

Total Wet Position 4

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Governmant

Business-
Governmental typa
Aativities Activities Total
1,650,344 & 1,213,058 § 2,863,402
615,968 200,801 816,769
168,742 122,465 292,607
19,672 11,164 30,836
12 - 12
- 166,604 166,604
{3,175) 3,175 -
3 - 3
2,452,566 1,717,667 4,170,233
21,880,323 8,334,430 30,214,753
(7,587,332} {4,149,116) {11,736, 448)
14,252,991 4,185,314 18,478,305
- 226,736 226,736
14,292,891 4,412,050 18,705,041
16,745,557 6,129,717 22,875,274
13,579 - 13,579
518,700 - 518,700
532,279 - 532,27%
28,916 675,895 704,811
3,915,784 - 3,915,784
3,944,700 675,895 4,620,595
4,476,979 675,805 5,152,814
9,816,012 3,736,155 13,552,167
25,820 - 25,820
189,408 - 189,409
39,120 - 3%,120
100,311 - 100,311
32,707 - 32,707
79,433 - 79,433
21,637 - 21,637
52,518 - 52,518
488, 848 - 488,848
44,320 - 44,320
17,005 - 17,005
1,361,438 1,717,667 3,079,105
12,268,578 § 5,453,822 § 17,722,400




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOLS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

MODIFIED CASH BASIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities
Current
General Governmeant
Administration
Planning and Zoning
Public Safety
Stresta & Allays
Culture & Recreation
Parks
Conventien Center
Debt Service
Capital Qutlay

Tatal Goverrmental Activities

Business-type Activities
Water
Sanitary Sower

Total Business-type Activities

Total Governmental and Businesa-type Activities

Changes in Net Position
Hat (Expense) Reveanue

General Revenues
Property Tax
Utility Tax
Telecommunications Tax
Ingome Tax
Replacement Tax
fSales and Use Tax
Gamas Tax
Reimburgements
Interast
Bond Subaidies
Motor Fual Tax
Gain/ (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets
QOperating Transfers

Total General Revanuas, Logsges
and Tranefers

Change in Net Position
Mat Position, January 1

Net Position, Dacamber 31

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

§

Program Revenuas

Capital Net
Charges for Grants and {Expense)
Expenges Services Contributions Revanue
504,975 § 212,693 § - 8 {291,282)
70,008 - - {70,008)
1,032,368 73,628 303 (958,437)
996,813 - - {996,813)
418,376 B0, 427 12,851 {325,098}
136,593 128,899 - {7,694}
259,161 - - (259,161}
38,696 - - (38, 696)
3,456,990 496,647 B 13,154 (2,947,180)
1,252,615 1,642,800 - 390,185
550,654 497,958 - {52,656}
1,803,269 2,140,798 - 337,529
5,260,259 5 2,637,445 § 13,154 § {2,609,660)
Bugsineas-
Governmental type
Activities Agtivities Total
(2,947,189) § 337,82¢ § {2,609,660)
1,234,676 - 1,234,676
162,479 - 162,479
64,851 - 64,851
601,020 - 601,020
30,824 - 30,824
476,444 - 476,444
40,234 - 40,234
59,8655 - 59,655
26,562 7,747 34,309
31,615 - 31,615
152,875 - 152,875
{6,061) - {6,061)
&0,000 {60,000) -
2,935,174 (52,253) 2,882,921
(12,015) 2B5,276 273,261
12,280,593 5,168,546 17,449,139
12,268,578 § 5,453,822 $ 17,722,400
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VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATICN OF THE STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABRILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

MODIFIED CASH BASIS

December 31, 2017

Total Fund Balances ~ Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital Assets of $21,88B0,323 net of accumulated
depreciation of ($7,587,332), are not financial
regources and therefora, are not reported in the
funds.

Bonds and notes payable are not reported in the
governmental Ffunds

Net Position of Governmental Activities

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this

5 2,452,566

14,292,991

{4,476,979)

$ 12,268,578

statement.
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VILLAGE OF MT, ZION, ILLINOIS

RECONCILTATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES RECEIVED, EXPENDITURES DISBURSED AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

jMODIFIED CASH BASIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Net Change in Fund Balancas - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures while governmental activities report
depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures
over the life of the assets:

Capital asset purchases capitalized

Depreciation expense

Proceeds from Sale of Equipment

Gain/ (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets

The issuance of long-term debt provides current
financial resources to the governmental funds, while
the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial rescurces of the
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however,
has any effect on net position.

Bond and note principal repayments

Bond issue premium amortization

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this

statement.

§

3

(2,074,343)

422,553
(889, 885)
(3,379)
(6,061)

2,532,225
6,875

(12,015)




VILLAGE OF MT, ZION, ILLINQIS

STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
MODIFIED CASH BASIS

December 31, 2017

ASESETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cagh Equivalants

Cextificates of Deposit

Municipal Bonds

IMET Liquidated Trust Receivable

Due From Other Funds

Accounts Receivable (net of allowance
for doubtful accounts)

Total Current Agsats
Nen-Current Assets
Land, Property, Plant and Equipment
Less: RAccumulated Depreciation
Net Land, Proparty Plaint and Equipment
Intangible Asset
Sewer System Annexation Cost [Net of
Accumulated Rmortization of $943,517)
Total Hon-curraent Agsets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Nen-Current Liabilities
Water Plant Loan, non-current

Total Long Term Liabilities
WET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Rasgtricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Business-type Activities

Water Sanitary Sewer Total
1,173,165 § 39,893 1,213,058
200,801 - 200,801
122,865 - 122,865
11,082 B2 11,164
3,175 - 3,175
129,093 37,511 166,604
1,640,181 77,486 1,717,667
4,656,987 3,677,443 B,334,430
{1,910,345%) {2,238,771) (4,149,116)
2,746,642 1,438,672 4,185;314
= 226,736 226,736
2,746,642 1,665,408 4,412,050
4,386,823 1,742,894 6,129 717
675,855 - 675,895
675,895 - 675,895
2,070,747 1,665,408 3,736,155
1,640,181 77,486 1,717,667
3,710,528 1,742,894 § 5,453,822

Notes tc Financial $Statements are an integral parxt of this statement.




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINQIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
MODIFIEDR CASH BASIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Business-type Activities

Sanitary
Water Sawer Total
Cperating Revenues
Charges for Serviges $ 1,633,625 - § 494,698 $ 2,128,323
Other Fees & Miscellaneous 9,175 3,300 12,478
Total Cperating Revenues 1,642,800 497,098 2,140,798
Cperating Expeﬁses
Personal Services
Salaries 239,448 110,792 350,240
Benefits 61,383 39,197 100,580
Total Personal Services 300,831 149,989 450,820
Operations and Contractual Services
Repairs & Maintenance 21,7953 36,410 - 28,203
Engineering 13,043 3,058 16,099
Janitorial Services 5,980 5,980 11,960
Postage 4,924 3,649 8,573
Telephone 1,899 1,747 3,646
Printing & Fublications 2,450 1,711 4,161
Faes 29,371 - 8,057 37,428
Travel & Training 3,638 413 4,051
Utilities 8,172 5,375 13,547
Watar Purchases 741,227 - 741,227
Sewer Treatment Charges - 210,725- 210,725
Suppliss & Egquipment 11,269 3,959 15,228
Meters 2,812 2,812 5,624
Gascline & 0il 8,880 8,881 - 17,761
Depreciation and Bmortization 96,3286 - 107,890 204,216
Total QOperations and
Contractual Services 951,784 400,665 1,352,449
Total Operating Expenses 1,252,615 550,654 1,803,269
Operating Income(Loss) 390,185 {52,656) 337,529
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest Income 7,471 276 7,747
Operating Transfers Out (40,000) - {20,000) - {60,000}
Total Non-Operating
Revenuas (Expensas) (32,52%9) {19,724) {52,253)
Change in Net Position 357,656 {72,380} 285,276
Total Net Position, January 1 3,353,272 1,815,274 5,168,546
Total Net Position, December 31 $ 3,710,928 % 1,742,894 & 5,453,822

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - DPROPRIETARY FUNDS
MODIFIED CASH BARSIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Business—-type Activities

Sanitary
Wataxr Sewer Tatal
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Receivad from Customers 8 1,647,882 § 500, 654 $ 2,148,536
Payments to Suppliers ' {916,B41) (331,972} {1,248,813)
Payments to Employees . {239, 448) {110, 792} {350,240)
Net Cash Provided{Used) by Operating Activities 491,593 57,890 549,483
Cash Flowa from Non-capital Financing Activities
Receipts (Payments) on Interfund Loans {3,175) - (3,175}
Transfera from (to) the General Fund (40,000} {20,000) {60, 000)
Net Cash Provided{Used) by Non-Capital .
Financing Activities {43,175} {20, 000) {63,175)
Cash Fleows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of Capital Assats {4B5,206) - {485,206)
Receiptzs (Payments) on Water Plant IEPA Loan 675,885 - 675,895
Net Cash Provided(Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities 190,689 - 190,689
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Redemption of Municipal Bonds 57,042 - 57,042
Increase of Certificates of Deposityg {801} - (801}
Interest Received 7,471 276 T, 747
Wet Cash Frovided{Used) by Investing }
Activities - 63,712 276 63,998
Net Increase (Decrezse} in Cash in Bank 702,819 38,166 740,585
Cash in Bank and Register - January 1 470,346 1,727 472,073
Cash in Bank and Register - December 31 $ 1,173,165 § 35,893 § 1,213,058
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Leoss) to Het Cash
Provided (Used) by Oparating Rotivities
Operating Income $ 390,185 § {52,656y § 337,529
Rdjuatments to Reconcile Operating Income{Loss) to
Nat Cash Providaed(Used} by Operating Activities
Dapreciation and RAmortization 96,326 107,890 204,216
Changesa in Assets and Liabilities
{Increase)Decrease in Accounts Receivable 5,082 2,656 7,738
Total Adjustments 101,408 110,546 211,954
Het Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities § 491,593 § 57,890 § 549,483

Hotes to Financial Statementes are an integral part of this statenment.




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
MODIFIED CASH BASIS

December 31, 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8
Mutual Funds
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Certificates of Deposit
Municipal Bonds

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
NET POSITION
Restricted for Pension Benefits

Total Net Position

$

Police
Pension Fund

24,315

137,386

161,701

1,035,298
164,943

1,200,241

1,361,942

1,361,942

1,361,942

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES RECEIVED, EXPENDITURES DISBURSED,
AND CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
MODIFIED CASH BASIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Police
Pension Fund
Additions
Property Tax 5 327,429
Member Contributions 53,533
Employer Contributions 38,104
Investment Earnings
Interest 14,413
Dividends 3,134
Realized and Unrealized Gains(Losses) 17,614
Total Additions 454,227
Deductions
Benefit Payments 43,531
Administrative Expenditures 20,873 -
Total Deductions 64,404
Change in Net Position 389,823
Total Net Position, January 1 972,119

Total Net Position, December 31 5 1,361,942

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINQIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017

Note 1 Significant accounting pelicies followed by the Village are as follows -

a)

B)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting -

The government-wide, business-type activities, proprietary fund,
fiduciary furnd and internal service fund financial statements are
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus, which measures
both financial and capital resources. The governmental fund financial
statements are prepared using the current financial resource measurement
fecus, which is based on the concept of fiscal accountability.

Therefore, due to the differences in measurement focuses, the
governmental fund financial statements include reconciliations with brief
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-
wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues received and expenditures
disbursed are recognized in the accounts and how they are reported on the
financial statements. The Village maintains its accounting records for
all funds on the modified cash basis of accounting. The government-wide
financial statements are also prepared using the modified cash basis of
accounting. Accordingly, revenues are recognized and recorded in the
accounts when cash is received, except for the water & sewer fund in
which revenue is recorded when services rendered are billed. In the same
manner, expenditures are recognized and recorded upon the disbursement of
cash. Assets of a fund are only recorded when a right to receive cash
exists which arises from a previous cash transaction, except for the
water & sewer funds in which receivables for services rendered are
recorded when billed. Liabilities of a fund, similarly, result from
previous cash transactions.

Modified cash-basis financial statements omit recognition of receivables
and payables and cther accrued and deferred items that do not arise from
previous cash transactions with the exception that the Village
capitalizes assets and depreciates them over their useful lives, records
revenue and receivables for the business-type activities when billings
are prepared, and recognizes unrealized gains and losses on its
investments. Accordingly, the statements do not present financial
position or results of operations in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Investments are comprised of savings accounts, certificates of deposit,
money markets, mutual funds and municipal bonds, some of which are
federally insured. All investments are carried at cost, which
approximates market, except for mutual funds and municipal bonds, which
are carried at market value. The Village board has legal authority to
invest in certificates of deposit and other investments,

Capital Assets -

The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment (capital
assets) depends on whether the assets are used in governmental Ffund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported
in the government-wide or fund financial statements.




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, XLLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
{Continued}

Note 1 Significant accounting policies followed by the Village are as follows -
{Continued)

B} Capital Assets (Continued) -

Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are accounted
for as assets in the Statement of Net Position. All capital assets are
valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is
unavailable, except for donated capital' assets which are recorded at
their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The Village has not maintained records of its governmental activities’
infrastructure assets placed in service prior to May 1, 2004.
Accordingly, the amount presented in the gtatement of Net Position for
governmental activities’ capital assets includes only infrastructure
assets purchased after May 1, 2004. Management helieves the depreciated
amount of these assets is not material to the financial statements.

The fixed assets of the Water and Sewer funds have been recorded at cost
since April 1, 1%60. The costs of assets acquired prior to this date
have not been included. Management believes the depreciated amount of
these assets is not material to the financial statements,

Depreciation of all exhaustible f£ixed assets is recorded as an expense in
the Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in
the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation has been provided as
cutlingd below:

The cost for maintenance will bhe expensged.

The fellowing depreciation methods are established:

Waterworks and Sewer System 34-40 years, straight line
Infrastructure 20-40 years, straight line
Equipment and Machinery 5-10 vyears, straight line
Furniture and Office Equipment 5-1¢ vyears, straight line

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets acquired for use in
governmental fund cperations are accounted for as expenses of the
governmental funds upon acquisition. 'Capital assets acquired for use in
proprietary fund cperations are accounted for the same as in the
government-wide statements.




VILLAGE OF MT. Z2ION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Nete 1 Significant acecounting policies followed by the Village are as follows -
(Continued)

C) Reporting Entity -

D)

In evaluating how to define the Village, for financial reporting
purposes, management (Trustees) has considered all potential component
units. The decision to include a potential component umnit in the
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in generally
accepted accounting principles. The basic, but not the only, criterion
for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is
the Village's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most
significant manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency.
Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility
include, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority,
the designation of management (Trustees), the ability to significantly
influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. A second
criterion used in evaluating potential component unitg is the scope of
public service.

Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity
is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the Village and isg
generally available to its citizens. A third criterion used to evaluate
potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting
entity is the existence of special financing relationghips; regardless of
whether the Vvillage is able to exercise oversight responsibilities.

Baged upon the application of the criteria, the Mt. Zion Police Pensicn
Fund has been identified as a component unit of the Village. The Pension
Fund is fiscally dependent on the Village to levy taxes to fund its
pension liabilities., The Pension Fund is reported as a fiduciary fund of
the Village.

Basis of Presentation -

Although the village presents its annual financial statements on the
modified cash basis of accounting, a special purpose framework other than
GAAP, the aspects of financial statement content and format, as
prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and
Management’'s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments
have been implemented in the financial statements, effective for the year
ended April 30, 2005 and after. This change had a material effect on the
comparability of previous year financial statements to statements dated
April 30, 2005 and after. ‘

The following represents the Village’s basis of financial statement
presentation based on the GASBE 34 format.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display
information about the Village as a whole. They include all funds of the
Village except for fiduciary funds.




Note 1

VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
{Continued)

Significant acecounting policies followed by the Village are as follows -
(Continued)

D) Basis of Presentation - (Continued)

The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type
activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through
taxes, intergovernment revenues, and other non-exchange revenues.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged
to the external customers for goods or services.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into
funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity.
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues,
and expenditures. Funds are organized into three major categories:
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major
funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is
considered major if it is either the General Fund or if it meets the
following criteria:

Total assets plug deferved outflows of resources, liabilities plus
deferred inflows of resources, revemues, or expenditures/expenses of
that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10
percent of the corresponding element total for all funds of that
category or type, and

Total assets plus deferred outflows of resources, liabilities plua
deferred inflows of resources, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of
that individual govermmental or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent
of the corresponding element total for all govermmental and enterprise
Funds combined.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of
the Village are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the
Village's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities
{arising from cash transactions} are accounted for through governmental
funds.

General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources
except those reguired to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for cash received from
specific sources. The expenditures in excess of the amounts
received and accumulated fund balance for these special revenue
funds become an cbligation of the general fund.




VILLAGE OF MT, ZION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017

Note 1
(Continuad)

D} Basis of Presentation -
Fund

Motor Puel Tax
Fund

Audit Fund

Social Security
Fund

Liability
Insurance Fund

IMRF Fund

School Crossing
Guard Fund

Unemployment
Compensation
Fund

General Capital
Projects Fund

Special Tax
Allocation Fund

Lease Purchacse
Fund

Bond Repayment
Funds

(Continued)

(Continued)

Brief Description

Accounts for revenues

S8ignificant acecunting policies followed by the Village are as follows ~

collected from the motor

fuel tax and expenditures associated with
maintenance of the Village’'s streets and:

alleys.

Accounts for property
expenditures paid fox
audit.

Accounts for property
expenditures paid for
taxes.

Accounts for
expenditures
insurance.

property
paid for

Accounts for property
expenditures paid for
Village’'s employees.

Accounts for property
expenditures paid for
crossing guards,

Accounts for property

expenditures paid for

Accounts for revenues

taxes collected and
the village’'s annual

taxes collected and
the village’s payroll

taxes collected and
the Village’'s liability

taxes collected and
retirement for the

taxes collected and
the salary of the school

taxes collected and
unemployment insurance.

collected, primarily bond

proceeds, and expenditures paid for capital
projects for the Vvillage.

Accounts for property
expenditures paid for

financing district {T.

Accounts for property
expenditures paid for
agssociated with asset

taxes collected and
the tax increment
I.F).

taxes collected and
the lease payments
acqguisitions.

Account for property taxes collected and
expenditures paid for bond interest and

principal payments.




Note 1

VILIAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Significant accounting policies followed by the Village are as follows -
{Continued)

D) Basis of Presentation - (Continued)

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges or (b) where the governing
body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or
cther purposes.

Fund Brief Description

Water & Sewer Funds Account for the activities of providing
water and sanitation sewer services to
the public,

Internal Service Fund

Risk Management Fund Accounts for transfers from other funds
and expenditures paid for the Village's
ingurance costs, deductibles, co-
insurance, and judgments.

Fiduciary Fund

Police Pension Fund Accounts for property taxes collected
and expenditures paid for pension
benefits of gualified police officers.

Major and Non-major Funds

The funds are classified as major or non-major as follows:




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Note 1 8ignificant accounting policies followed by the Village are as follows =

{Continued)
D) Basis of Presentation - (Continued)
Major Funds Non-major Funds
General Fund Audit Fund
General Capital Projects Fund - Bocial Security Fund
Special Tax Allocation Fund = Liability Insurance Fund
Motor Fuel Tax Fund 7 IMRF Fund
2009 Bond Repayment Fund School Crossing Guard Fund
Water Fund Unemployment Compensaticon Fund
Sanitary Sewer Fund Lease Purchase Fund
2010 and 2016 Bond Repayment Funds
E) Use of Estimates -

F)

@)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles reguires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Priority for Use of Resgtricted and Unrestricted Assets -

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it
is the Village's practice to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as needed.

Budgets and Appropriations -

The budget and appropriation ordinance for all fund types is prepared on
the cash basie of accounting which is similar to the modified cash basis
that is used in financial reporting. This allows for comparability
hetween budgeted and actual amounts. The Village’s budget and
appropriation ordinance was passed on December 5, 2016.




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
{Continued)

Note 1 Significant accounting policies follewed by the Village are as follows -
(Continued)

G} Budgets and Appropriations - {(Continued)

For each fund, total fund expenditures disbursed may not legally exceed
budgeted amounts. The appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal
year. Expenditures exceeded budgeted ameounts in the 2009 Bond Repayment
Fund by $2,091,187 for the fiscal year eénded December 31, 2017. This was
due’ to the village not budgeting for the activity related to the
refunding bonds’ issuance and escrow account.

H) Non-current Liabilities -

The Village considers any liability not expected to be paid within one
year to be a non-current liability. The liabilities shown on the
statement of net position and the statement of fund net position -
proprietary fund are broken down between current and non-current
liabilities,

1) Program Revenues -

In the Statement of Activities, revenues that are derived directly from
each activity or from parties outside the Village’s taxpayers are
reported as program revenues. The Governmental Activities’ program
revenues include fines, police services, permits, donations, rental fees
and event admissions. The Water and Sewer Funds’ program revenues are
the collection of water and sewer charges from customers who receive
water and sewer services from the Village and grants received from other
governments.

J) Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenditures -

Proprietary fund statements classify revenues and expenditures as either
operating or as nonoperating. The Village considers operating revenues
and expenditures for proprietary funds to be those that result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods and/or services,
Revenues and expenditures related to capital and related financing,
noncapital financing, or investing activities are considered to be
nonoperating. All revenues of the proprietary funds are to be used to
cover cperations.

K) Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities -

"If any interfund activity occcurs or balances exist in the fund financial
statements, they are eliminated or reclassified in the process of
aggregating the financial information for the government-wide Statement
of Net Position and Statement of Activities.

L) Cash and Cash Equivalents -

Cash and Cash Eguivalents include all monies in banks and highly liquid
investments, The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents
approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those
financial investments,




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decenber 31, 2017
(Continued)}

Significant accounting policies followed by the Village are as follows —
(Continued)

M} Legal Debt Margin -

The following outlines the legal debt margin of the Village of Mt. Zion
as of December 31, 2017:

2017 Assessed Valuation 5111,279,922

Statutory Debt Limitation
B.625% of Assgessed Valuation 9,597,893

Outstanding Bonds

Series 2010A 245,000
Series 2010B 1,715,000
Series 2016 287,600
Series 20164 330,000
Series 2016B 1,805,000
Outstanding Notes Payable 718,320
Lesg:
Alternate Revenue Bonds $2,135,000 5 2,965,990
Legal Debt Margin % 6,631,903

N) Fund Balance Reporting -

According to Government Accounting Standards, fund balances are to be
classified into five major classifications; nonspendable, restricted,
committed, assigned, and unassigned. Below are definitions of each
classification.

a. Nonspendable Fund Balance

The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that
cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or
(k) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The
“not in spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected
to be converted to cash, for example inventories and prepaid amounts.
Due to the modified cash basis nature of the Vvillage, all such itemsg
are expensed at the time of purchase, sc there is nothing to report for
this classification.




VILLAGE OF MT, ZION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
{Continued)

Note 1 Significant accounting policies followed by the Village are as follows —
{Continued)

N) Fund Balance Reporting - (Continued)
b. Restricted Fund Balance

The restricted fund balance classification refers to amounts that are
(1) subject to outside restrictions, not controlled by the entity, such
a8 restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
and regulations of other governments, or {2) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation of the government
itself. All special revenue funds have been restricted for their
respective specified purposes.

Additionally, $25,820 of the General Fund’'s fund balance is restricted
for Police, KICK, Drug, and DUI programs.

¢. Committed Fund Balance

The committed fund balance classification refers to amounts that can
only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by
formal action of the government’s highest level of decision making
authority (the Village Board). Those committed amounts cannot be used
for any other purpose unless the government removes or changes the
specified use by taking the same type of formal action it employed to
previously commit those amounts.

The Village Beoard commits fund balance by making motions or passing
resolutions to adopt policy or to approve contracts. Committed fund
balance also incorporates contractual cbligations to the extent that
existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use
in satisfying those contractual requirements. The Village does not
have any balances committed as of December 31, 2017.

d. Assigned Fund Balance

The assigned fund balance classification refers to amounts that are
constrained by the government’s intent to be used for a specific
purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. The Village Board
has the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.

The Village has assigned $128,477 of the Village’'s fund balances as
follows as of December 31, 2017:




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS
NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
{Continued)

Note 1 Significant accounting policies followad by the Village are as follows -~
(Continued)

N) Fund Balance Reporting - {Continued)

d. Assigned Fund Balance {Continued)

Purpose Amount
Audit & 1,000
Series 2009 Bond Payments 111,428
Series 2010 Bond Payments 16,052

$ 128,477

e. Unassigned Fund Balance

The unassigned fund balance classification is the residual
c¢lassification for General Fund amounts that have not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes.

f. Bxpenditures of Fund Balance

Unless specifically identified, expenditures act to reduce restricted
balances first, then committed balances, next assidned balarces, and
finally act to reduce unassigned balances. Expenditures for a
specifically identified purpose will act to reduce the specific
clasgification of fund balance that is identified. BAs of Decembexr 31,
2017, no formal fund balance policy had been adopted by the Village.

0) Deferred Cutflows of Regources, Deferred Inflows of Rescurces, and Net
Pogition -

The Village follows GASB Statement No. 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred
outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position
which was effective for audits of periods beginning after November 15,
2011. A deferred outflow of resources represents the consumption of a
government’s net assets that is applicable to a future peried. A
deferred inflow of resources represents the acquisition of net assets
that is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred outflows of
resources are reported in a separate section of the Statement of Net
Position following assets. Deferred inflows of resources are reported in
a separate gection of the Statement of Net Position Eollowing
liabilities. As of December 31, 2017, the Village had not engaged in any
transactions which gualified for reporting as a deferved outflow of
resource or deferred inflow of resource.
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VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
{Continued)

Significant accounting policies followed by the Village are as follows -
(Continuad)

P} Accounts Receivable -

Customer receivables related to water and sewer biliings are recorded as
receivables and revenues at their original involice amount, after services
have been rendered and corresponding bills have been prepared.

Management periodically reviews the customer receivable accounts and
accounts are written off as they bhecome uncollectible or deemed
uncellectible. Therefore, accounts receivable is recorded net of
allewance for uncollectible accounts.

Property Tax Calendar -

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of
each year. The 2016 levy (collected in the period ending December 31, 2017)
was adopted by the Village on December 5, 2016. The collection dates, by
the county, for the 2016 levy were June 2017 and September 2017. The
Village receives significant distributions of tax receipts approximately one
month after these due dates.

Accrued Vacation/Leave -

Due to the Village reporting on the modified cash basis of accounting no
accrual has been made for employees vacation/leave earned but not taken.

Each employee is allowed to carry over a maximum of 40 hours of vacation
time to a new fiscal year. Any unused vacation time in excess of 40 hours
from the previous fiscal year is lost. As of December 31, 2017, the
accumulated vacation time amounted to $37,886.

Sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and are cumulative but do
not vest with employees and, therefore, are not paid out at termination,
Unvested accumulated sick leave of Village employees at December 31, 2017
amcunted to $248,339.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan — IMRF
IMRF Plan Description

The Village's defined benefit pension plan for regular employees provides
retirement and disability benefits, post-retirement increases, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries, The Village’s plan is managed
by the Illinecis Municipal Retirement Fund {(IMRF}, the administrator of a
multi-employer public pension fund (agent multiple-employer plan). A
summary of IMRF’s pension benefits is provided in the “Benefits Provided”
section of this document. Details of all benefits are available from IMRF.
Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the
General Assembly of the State of Jllinois. IMRF issues a publicly available
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statements,
detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position, and
required supplementary information., The report is avallable for download at
www, imrf,org.
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VILLAGE OF MT. 2ION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan - IMRF (Continued)
Benefitz Provided

IMRF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate
in the Regular Plan (RP). The Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP)
plan is for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and selected police chiefs. Counties
could adopt the Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials elected
prior to August 8, 2011 (the ECO plan was closed to new participants after
that date). :

All three IMRF benefit plans have two tiers. Employees hired before January
1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for
pension benefits when they have at least eight years of qualifying service
credit. Tier 1 employees who retire at age 55 (at reduced benefits) or
after age 60 (at full benefits) with eight years of service are entitled to
an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal
to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service
credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum
of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the
highest total earnings during any consecutive 48 months within the last 10
yvears of service, divided by 48. Under Tier 1, the pension is increased by
3% of the original amount on January 1 every yeatr after retirement.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2
benefits. For Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of
service., Participating employees who retire at age 62 {at reduced benefits)
or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years of service are entitled to
an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount egual
to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of serxvice
credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum
of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the
highest total earnings during any 96 consecutive months within the last 10
years of service, divided by 96. Under Tier 2, the pension is increased on
Jamuary 1 every year after retirement, upon reaching age 67, by the lesser
of:

¢ 3% of the original pension amount, or

* 1/2 of the increase in the Consumer Price Index of the original
pension amount.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terns

As of December 31, 2017, the following employees were covered by the benefit
texrms:

Reqular SLEP

Retirees and Beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 25 2
Inactive Plan Members entitled to but not yet receiving

benefits 16 0
Active Plan Members ‘ 17 0

Total 58 2
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VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan - IMRF {Continued)
Contributions

Ag set by statute, the Village’s Regular Plan members are required to
contribute 4.5% of their annual covered salary and the Village’s SLEP Plan
members are required to contribute 7.5% of their annual covered salary. The
statute regquires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition
to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own
employees. The Village’'s annual contribution rate for calendar year 2017 was
10.88% for the Regular Plan and 0.00% for the SLEP Plan. For the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2017, the Village contributed £79,182 to the Regular Plan
and $0 to the SLEP Plan. The Village also contributes for disability
benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which
are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death
benefits are set by IMRF‘s Board of Trustees, while the supplemental
retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Net Pension Liability

The Village’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2017.
The total pension -liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. No amount has been
recorded on these financial statements due to the modified cash basis of
accounting.

Actuarial Assumptions

The following are the methods and assumptions used to determine total
pension liability at December 31, 2017:

¢ The Actuarial Cost Method used was Entry Age Normal.

¢ The Asset Valuation Mathod used was Market Value of Assets.

» The Inflation Rate was assumed to be 2.50%.

¢ Salary Increases were expected to be 3.39% to 14.25%, including
inflation.

* The Investment Rate of Return was assumed to be 7.50%.

* DProjected Retirement Age was from the Experience-based Table of
Rates, specific to the type of eligibility condition, last updated
for the 2017 valuation aceording to an experience study from years
2014 to 2016,

s For Non-disabled Retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used
with fully generational projection scale MP-2017 {base year 2015).
The IMRF-specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar
Health Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current
IMRF experience.

s For Disabled Retirees, an IMRF-specific mortality table was used
with fully generational projection scale MP-2017 (base year 2015).
The IMRF-specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled
Retirees Mortality Table, applying the same adjustments that were
applied for non-disabled lives.

¢ TFor Active Members, an IMRF-specific mortality table was used with
fully generational projection scale MP-2017 {base year 2015}. The
IMRF-gspecific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Employee
Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience.
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Note 4 Defined Benafit Pension Plan - IMRF (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate
ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are develcped
for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return to the target asset allocation percentage and
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates
of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Portfolio Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Percentage Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 37% 6.85%
International Equity 18% 6.75%

Fixed Income 28% 3.00%
Real Estate 9% 5.75%
Alternative Investments 7% 2.65-7.35%
Cash Equivalents 1% 2.25%
Total 100%

Single Discount Rate

A Single Discount Rate of 7.50% was used to measure the total pension
liability. The projection of cash flow used to determine thisg Single

Discount Rate assumed that the plan members’ contributions will be made at
the current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will be made
at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution

rateg and the member rate. The Single Discount Rate reflects:

1. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments

(during the period in which the fiduciary net position is projected
to be sufficient to pay benefits), and

The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year
general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating (which is
published by the Federal Reserve) as of the measurement date (to the
extent that the contributions for use with the long-term expected
rate of return are not met).

For the purpcse of the most recent valuation, the expected rate of return on
plan investments ig 7.50%, the muni¢ipal bond rate is 3.31%, and the
resulting single disgcount rate is 7.50%.
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Note 4 Defined Benefit Pension Plan - IMRF (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability - Regular Plan

Total Plan
Pension Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(&) (3 (A) - (B}

Balances at December 31, 2016 $6,817,438 96,264,114 $ 553,324
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 66,211 66,211
Interest on the Total

Pension Liability 498,568 498,568
Changes of Benefit Terms 0

Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience of
the Total Penaion

Liability 30,0094 30,084
Changes of Assumptlons (203,536) (203,536)
Contributions - Employer 79,182 {79,182}
Contributions - Employees 33,422 {33,422)
Net Investment Income 1,178,467 {1,178, 467)

Benefit Payments, including
Refunds of Employee

Contributions {405,934) (405,934} I
Other (Net Tranafer) (55,777} 55,777
Net Changes (14,597} 829,360 {843,957)

o ———— e, me e e e mm——

Balances at December 31, 2017 £6,802,841 87,093,474 & (290,633)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate -
Regular Plan

The following presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a
Single Discount Rate of 7.50%, as well as what the plan‘s net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that
iz 1% lower ox 1% higher:

1% Lower Current Discount 1% Higher
(6.50%} {7.50%) {8.50%)

Net Pension Liability $524,388 $(290,633) $(960,341)
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Note 4 Defined Benefit Pengion Plan - IMRF (Continued)

Note 5

Changes in the Net Pension Liability - SLEP Plan

Total Plan
Pension Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (B) (a}-(B)
Balances at December 31, 2016 5 51,772 $ (26,369}

5 78,141
Changes for the year: :
Service Cost . 0
Interest on the Total

Pension Liability 3,715 3,715
Changes of Benefit Terms 0
Differences Between Expected

and Actual Experience of

the Total Pension

Liability 6,692 6,692
Changes ¢f Assumptions (1,600]) {1, 600)
Contributicns - Employer 0
Contributions - Employees 0
Net Investment Income 15,731 {15,731)
Benefit Payments, including

Refunds of Employee

Contributions (4,478} (4,478) 0
Other ({Net Transfer) 4,756 (4,756)
Met Changes 4,329 16,009 (11, 68B0)
Balances at December 31, 2017 $ 56,101 $ 94,150 $ (38,049)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability te Changes in the Discount Rate -
SLEP Plan

The following presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a
Single Discount Rate of 7.50%, as well as what the plan’s net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that
is 1% lower or 1% higher:

1% Lower Current Discount 1% Higher
(6.50%) {7.50%) (8.50%)
Net Pension Liability $(32,725) $(38,049) 5{42,624)

Post Employment Health Insurance -

Currently, retired employees of the Village can participate in the Village’'s
health insurance plan. The retirees are responsible for 100% of the cost of
their coverage. Due to the Village reporiing on the modified cash basis, no
accruals or adjustments have been made in relation to this other post-
employment benefit,
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Nota 6 Deposits and Investments -

The Village maintains multiple checking and other accounts to account for
funds. Each Fund’'s portion of these accounts is displayed on the
appropriate Statement of Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds - Modified Cash Basis, on the Statement of Fund Net
Position - Proprietary Funds - Modified Cash Basis, or on the Statement of
Fiduciary Net Position - Modified Cash Basis, Investments are maintained
separately for each fund. The Village is allowed to invest in securities
authorized by State statute, section 2 and 6 of the Public Funds Investment
Act (30 ILCS 235/2 and 6). The Village currently invests in money markets,
certificates of deposits, CDARS, municipal bonds, and mutual funds,

The Village invests in the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund {IMET)
Convenience Fund which consists of monies invested by individual
participants that are pooled together in a short-term money market
instrument. These funds are collateralized via FDIC Insurance, the FHLB LOC
Program, and pocled Government Securities at 110% on bank deposits.

The Village does not have policies regarding credit risk, custodial credit
risk or concentration of credit risk.

Custodial credit risk for deposits and time deposits is the risk that in the
event of a bank failure, the Village's depcsits and time deposits may not be
returned or the Village will not be able to recover collateral securities in
the possession of an outside party. Demand deposits of 812,725 at Prairie
State Bank are fully insured., Time deposits of $1,697,696 at Prairie State
Bank are covered by federal insurance up to $250,000. The remaining balance
of 51,447,696 is cellateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department or as agents in favor of the
Village. Demand deposits of $235,278 at Town and Country Bank are fully
insured. Time deposits of $982,859 at Scott State Bank are covered by
federal insurance up to $250,000. The remaining balance of $732,859 is
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department or as agents in favor of the Village. Demand deposits of
$25 at Staley Credit Union are fully insured. Investments totaling $257,178
with IMET are not insured, but are collateralized by pooled securities. Time
deposits of $200,801 at Busey Bank are fully insured. Time deposits of
$315,00% at Hickory Point Bank are fully insured.

The Village’'s General and Water Fund have invested in municipal bonds
totaling $169,742 and $122,865 respectively. These bonds were issued by the
Village of Mt. Zion, Illinois, and were repurchased by the Village itself,
during the year ended April 30, 2016. These amounts represent the Village's
investment in municipal bonds.

The Village’s Police Pension Fund investment portFfolio at Town and Country
is recorded at market value of 51,350,090. Of the total, $12,463 is
invested in an FDIC insured money market fund, 51,010,299 is invested in
FDIC insured certificates of deposits, $137,386 is invested in mutual funds
and $189,942 is invested in municipal bonds. The mutual Funds and municipal
bonds are unsecured.

The Village's Restricted Cash in Escrow of $3 is held by BOK Financial
Corporation. See Note 10 for further details regarding the purpose and
restrictions related to the escrow account.
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Deposits and Investments - (Continued)

As of December 31, 2017, the Village had the following balances of deposits,
cash equivalents, and investments:

Average
Types of Deposits/ Credit
Cash Equivalents/ Quality
Investments Fair Value Cost Ratings (1)
Demand Deposits § 248,028 5 248,028 N/A
N.O.W. and Money
Markets 2,392,397 2,392,397 N/A
IMET Convenience Fund 257,178 257,178 N/A
Mutual Funds 137,386 111, 685 N/A
Municipal Bonds 482,550 483,870 AR, A, Other
Certificates -
of Deposit 1,756,721 1,756,721 N/A
CDARS 70,000 70,000 N/A
Restricted Cash in Escrow 3 3 N/A
Total $5,344,263 55,322,618
(1) Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate associated credit

risk. WN/A indicates not applicable or rating not available.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an
investment will not fulfill its obligations. Generally, the Village's
investing activities are managed by the Village Administrator.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. Investments held for longer periods
are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate changes. The Village
uses the specific identification method of managing interest rate risk.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude
of the Village’s investment in a single issuer. External investment pools
are excluded when assessing concentration of credit risk.

Effective for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 the Village has
implemented GASB No., 72 Fair Value Measurement and Application in the
preparation of these financial statements. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Fair value measurements must maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There is a hierarchy of three
levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:
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Note 6 Deposits and Investments - (Continued)

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for an
identical asset or liability to which the government has
dccesgs at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that
are observable for an asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices in
active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in
markets that are not active, or other inputs that are
ocbservable or can be corroborated by observable market data
for substantially the full-term of the assets or
liabilities.

Level 3: Unaobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Uncbservable inputs should be used to measure the fair
value to the extent that observable inputs are not
available,

There have been no significant changes in the valuation techniques during
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. Where quoted market prices are

- availakle in an active market, securities are classified with Level 1 of the
valuation hierarchy. If guoted prices are not available, then fair wvalues
are estimated using quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics
or independent asset pricing services and pricing models, the inputs of
which are market-based or independently sourced market parameters,
including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest rates, volatilities,
prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and cash flows. Such
securities are classified in Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain
cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available, securities are
classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. At December 31, 2017, the
villages mutual funds, municipal bonds and certificates of deposits are
classified within the Level 1 hierarchy.

Note 7 Risks -

The Village is exposed to various risks of loms related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to
employees; and natural disasters,

The Village joined other governmental units and became a memper of the
Illinois Municipal League Risk Management Asscciation (IMLRMA), a public
entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and
insurance program for member governmental units. The Village pays an amwal
premiuvm to IMLRMA for its general insurance coverage.
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Risks - (Continued)

IMLRMA is self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through

commercial companies for claims in excess of §7,000,000 for each insured
event.

For the insured programs there have been no significant reductions in
coverage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the
current or prior three years.

Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures -

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure, as part of the
financial statements of ceértain information concerning individual funds
including:

24) Deficit fund balances of individual funds, The 2016 Bond Repayment Fund
had a deficit fund balance of $3,535 at December 31, 2017.

B} Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances. The 2016 Bond
Repayment Fund owed the Water Fund $3,175 and the General Fund $16,583.
The balance is expected to be fully repaid in the year ending December
31, 2018.

C) Interfund transfers. The Water Fund and Sewer Fund transferred 340,000
and $20,000 respectively to the General Fund for reimbursement of
expenses paid by the General Fund, as part of the budgeted activity for
the year. The General Fund transferred $193,495 and $195,885 to the 2009
Bond Repayment Fund and the 2010 Bond Repayment Fund, respectively, to
cover the costs of bond principal and interest payments. The Special Tax
Allocation Fund transferred $116,000 to the 2003 Bond Repayment Fund to
cover the costs of the bond principal and interest payments.

Beneficial Interest in Jommunity Foundation Account -

The Village entered into an agreement with the Community Foundation of Macon
County to establish the “"Mt. Zion Fletcher Park Fund”. Thig is a fund held
and wholly owned by the Community Foundation to support the construction and
operation of Fletcher Park.

Distributions from the fund are made by the Community Foundation beoard,
usually at the request of a donor or the Village. The ultimate control over
the funds is maintained by the Community Poundation in its fiduciary
capacity, and as such, the balance is not reported on the books of the
Village. The initial deposit to start the fund at the Community Foundation
was $1,000 and at December 31, 2017, the balance in the account was $54,177.
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Note 10 Long-Term Debt Obligations — Governmental Activities -

Changes in long-term debt for the year ended December 31, 2017 are as

follows:

Notes Payable

Bonds and Debt

Certificates Payable

Unamoxrtized Bond

Issue Premium

Totals

Beginning
Balance Issued
$ 55,521 5 0
6,901,800 0
58,758 0
$ 7,016,079 3 0

Ending

{(Retired) Balance
$ [ 13,026) § 42,495
(2,519,200) 4,382,600
{(6,874) 51,884
${2,539,100) S 4,476,979

The total amount due within one year is $532,279.
notes payable and $518,700 of bonds and debt certificates payable.

Bonds and Debt Certificates

This includes 313,579 of

The Village issues general obligation and alternate revenue bonds and debt
certificates to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major

capital facilities.

activities only.
following:

2010A General Obligation Debt Certificates

Bonds outstanding at December 31,

These bonds have been issued for governmental

2017 include the

(Limited Tax)

$B70, 000 general cbligation debt certificates issued on

October 7,

2010, due in various annual installments

ranging from $35,000 to $245,000 through October 1, 2019,

plus interest at 1.15% to 4.55%.
be repaid with property taxes received by the Village.

2010B General Obligation Debt Certificates

The certificates are to

245,000

(Limited Tax)

81,715,000 general obligation debt certificates issued on

October 7,

2010, due in wvarious annual installments

ranging from $265,000 to $535,000 through October 1,

2030, plus interest at 4.,90% tc 6,15%.

The certificates

are to be repaid with property taxes received by the

Village.

during the year ending December 31, 2020.

Principal payments are scheduled to begin

1,715,000
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Note 10 Long-Term Debt Obligations - Governmental Activities -~ (Continued)

2016 General Obligation Bonds

$487,600 general obligation bonds issued on February 1,

2016, due in various annual installments ranging from

$66,800 to $145,900 through December 1, 2019, plus

interest at-2.95% to 6.40%. The bonds are to be repaid

with property taxes received by the Village. The bond

was issued with a premium of 310,016 which is amortized

over the life of the bonds. 287,600

2016A Alternate Revenue Refunding Bonds

$336,000 alternate revenue refunding bonds issued on

September 1, 2016, due in various annual installments

ranging from $6,000 to $113,000 through December 1, 2020,

plus interest at 1.90%. The bonds are to be repaid with
telecommunicaktion tax receipts, franchise fees, and a

portion of utility tax receipts. These bonds were issued

to refund the 2009 Alternate Revenue Bonds. 334,000

2016B Alternate Revenue Refunding Bonds

$1,830,000 alternate revenue refunding bonds issued on

September 1, 2016, due in various annual installments

ranging from $25,000 to $180,000 through December 1,

2028, plus interest at 1.83%. The bonds are to be repaid

with telecommunication tax receipts, franchise fees, and

a portion of utility tax receipts. These bonds were

issued to refund the 2009 Alternate Revenue Bonds, 1,805,000

Total Bond and Debt Certificates at December 31, 2017 $4,382,600

Notes Payable

The Village borrowed funds from Prairie State Bank and

Trust, Mt. Zion, Illinois for the acquisition of a skid

steer loader. The funds have been borrowed for

governmental activities only. The note is payable in

annual installments of 515,385 including interest at

4,25%, matures on February 11, 2020, and is secured by

the loader. The note will be repaid with property taxes

received by the Village. The first installment was due

February 11, 2015. =4 42,495

Tctal Notes Payable at December 31, 2017 $ 42,495
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Note 10 Long-Term Debt Obligations ~ Governmental Activities - (Continued)

The annual regquirements to amortize all deht outstanding as of December 31,
2017, are as follows:

Bonds and Debt Certificates Payable

Prineipal Interest Total

Year ending Dec. 31, = = —====----  —ememmen= oo
2018 $ 518,700 & 155,723 5 674,423
2019 530,900 141,305 672,205
2020 398,000 126,478 524,479
2021 290,000 115,125 405,125
2022 300,000 105,674 405,674
2023-2027 1,630,000 364,427 1,994,427
2028-2032 715,000 70,022 785,022
Total 4,382,600 1,078,755 5,461,355
Bond Premium 51,884 0 51, B84

Total Bonds and Debt

Service Regquirement 54,434,484 $1,078,755 55,513,239

Principal Interest Total
Year ending Dec. 31, = ----====-=  mme-----  a----
2018 s 13,579 $ 1,806 8 15,385
2018 14,156 1,229 15,385
2020 14,760 625 15,385
Total Notes Payable
Service Requirement S 42,495 % 3,660 5 46,155

Debt service funds were created to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest related to the
bond issues. BAll monies deposited into the debt service funds are
restricted or assigned forxr payment of bond principal and interest only.

The 20162 & 2016B Alternate Revenue Refunding Bonds were issued on
September 1, 2016 for the purpose of redeeming the 2009 Alternate Revenue
Bonds. Upon issuvance, the proceeds have been placed in an escrow account,
which is reported as Restricted Cash in Escrow, This escrow account is
required to be maintained to pay interest and principle on the 2009
Alternate Revenue Bonds until December 1, 2017, the date which the 2009
Alternate Revenue Bonds were fully redeemed.




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOQIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
{Continued)

Note 11 Long-Term Debt Obligations - Business-Type Activities -

Changes in long-term debt for the year ended December 31, 2017 are ag

follows:
Beginning Ending
Balance Issued (Retired) Balance
Notes Payable ] 0 $ 675,895 & ( 0} 5 675,895
Totals & 0 $ 675,895 $ (0} % 675,885

In June 2017, the IL EPA approved a loan to the Village in the amount of
52,794,210 for the construction of an elevated water storage tank and a
booster pump station. The lecan calls for semi-annual payments of principal
and interegt at 1.64% for 20 years beginning November 1, 2019. The Village
will draw on the lcan as construction continues on the plant, As of
Decenmber 31, 2017, the Village had drawn 675,895 on the loan.

The annual requirements to amortize outstanding notes payable of $675,895 as

of December 31, 2017, are as follows:

Notes Payable

Principal Intexest Total

Year ending Dec. 31, = --=-=---= = e-------o we-a-
2018 s v 5 0 5 0
2019 14,346 5,542 19,888
2020 29,046 10,731 39,777
2021 29,524 10,253 39,777
2022 30,010 9,766 39,776
2023-2027 157,629 41,254 198,883
2028-2032 171,043 27,841 198,884
2033-2037 185,597 13,286 158,883
2038-2042 58,700 965 59,665

Total Notes Payable
Service Reguirement 5 675,895 $§ 119,638 % 795,533
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Note 12 Capital Assets -

The breakdown of capital assets by type and the related accumulated
depreciation for the Business-Type Activities is as follows:

Beginning Additions
Capltal Agsets:
Land and Easements 8 217,438 =
Construction in Progress 369,172 398,208
Buildings and System 6,686,889 220,130
Equipment 604,537
Total $ 7,878,036 % 618,338
Beginning Additions
Accumulated Depreclation:
Buildings and System $ 3,640,027 5 149,097
Equipment 362,942 25,862
Total 5 4,002,969 $ 174,959

Ending Book Value

Land and Easements and Construction in Progress are non-depreciating assets.

Deletions

(133,132)
(22,178)
(6,634)

$({22,178)
(6,634)

$ 217,438
634,248
6,884,841
597,903

5 3,766,946
382,170

The breakdown of capital assets by type and the related accumulated
depreciation for the Governmental Activitiesz iz as follows:

Beginning Additions
Capital Assets:
Land [ 971,363 5
Construction in Progressg 144,313 76,183
Buildings 3,498,095 12,408
Equipment 1,485,001 88,738
Infrastructure 15,438,554 253,062
Total $21,537,326 $ 430,391
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings 8 736,246 3 B2,383
Equipment 1,005, 366 99,967
Infrastructure 5,025,951 707,535
Total $ 6,767,563 § 889,885

Ending Book Value

Deletions
{ 7,837)
(79,557)

5 971,363
212,659
3,510,503
1,494,182
15,691,616

$ 818,629
1,035,217
5,733,486
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Capital Assets - (Continued)

Total depreciation for all governmental activities assets amounted to
889,885, for the current period, of which $91,124, $50,153, $58%,374,
$161,079 and $2,155 were charged to the Administration, Public Safety,
Street and Alleys, Parks and Convention Center functions, respectively.

Land and Construction in Progress are non-depreciating assets.
Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Agreement Note -

This note is an obligation issued pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation
Redevelopment Act (Section 5/11-74.4-1 et seq. of Chapter 65 of the Illinois
Compiled Statutes, the *“TIF Act”), as supplemented and amended (the “Act”),
and under the Redevelopment Agreement and the principal of and interest on
this Neote are payable, if at all, and not otherwise, solely and only from
Available Revenues in connection with a specified part {the Part/Phase of
the “Development Property”) of the Redevelopment Project Area, established
under the Act, and as provided in and subject to the limitations provided in
the Redevelopment Agreement pursuant to which the village of Mt. Zion has
issued this Note. The term “Available Revenues” means incremental property
taxes under Section 11-74.4-8 of the TIF Act in the percentage (90%)
specified in the Redevelopment Agreement, derived solely and only from the
Part/Phase of the Development Property, less certain Surplus and not
otherwise.

The Redevelopment Revenue Note dated May 16, 2012 had a total original
outgtanding balance of $660,682 at an interest rate of 4.5%. The note was
created to reimburse Lewis Property Develcopment LLC for outstanding eligible
project costs related to the Mt. Zion Gustin and Nelson Tax Increment
Redevelopment Project Area. The Village is required to make payments based
on available revenues until either the note is paid off, or until the TIF
agreement expires at December 31, 2022, whichever comes first.

buring the eight months ended December 31, 2016, additional eligible
expengses subject to reimbursement as part of this note were identified.
Expenses of $541,364 were identified from a requisition report dated
December 18, 2012. Accumulated interest since December 18, 2012 of $79,491
has been calculated and added on to the December 31, 2016 balance.
Additionally, expenses of $265,220 were submitted by the developer on
September 22, 2016,

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, payments made from TIF
revenue towards this obligation totaled $245,224 ($199,964 of principal and
445,260 of interest}. This resulted in a balance on this note of $965,469
at December 31, 2017.
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Construction and Other Commitments -

A Developers Economic Incentive Agreement was entered into in October 2012,
for the construction of a business within the Mt. Zion Village East
addition. The agreement called for a $58,120 payment for the property by
the owners and for the Village to pay as incentive $58,120 plus 25,000 on
the first day of operation of the business and up to an additional $25,000
as & rebate of one half of the sales tax collected by the Village from sales
at the business during the period of operation up to January 1, 2018,
resulting in total payments not to exceed §108,120. The fifty percent sales
tax rebate to be paid by the Village is to terminate after the Village has

paid $25,000 of sales tax rebates or on January 1, 2018, whichever occurs

first. 1In the year ended April 30, 2014, 558,120 was paid per this
agreement. The business owner decided to not take the additional two
payments of $25,000 and relieve the Village from all future obligations
related to this agreement. Accordingly, nothing was paid on this agreement
during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, and there will not be any
future payments on this agreement.

During the year ended April 30, 2015, the Village committed te¢ pay $150, 000
for an engineering and design plan relating to a new water tower. In Rugust
2016, the Village entered into an agreement with MSA Professional Services
for construction related engineering services, with a total cost of
$378,000. The new tower constructien will also include upgrades to the
water processing system. The total estimated cost to construct an elevated
composite water storage tank, with booster pumps and booster pump
appurtenances, pump station modifications and water main looping is
$4,137,600., The estimated cost includes capital cost, engineering and
contingency. During the 8 months ended December 31, 2016 and the year ended
December 31, 2017, the Village expended approximately $282,000 and $485,205,
regpectively, for construction and related engineering services. During
fiscal year 2017, bids were accepted and awarded. Korte & Luitjohan was
awarded the pump house improvements for $524,000. Caldwell Tanks was
awarded the tank portion for $2,383,000. The project began in October 2017
and will be completed by October 2018.

The Village has recently entered into an agreement with Chastain and
Associates, for the design and engineering of the splash pad for Fletcher
Park, with a cost not to exceed $36,500. The total cost of the splash pad
and a timetable for completicn are not yet known.

On September 15, 2017, the Village entered into an agreement with Dunn
Company for road maintenance to be performed and paid in 2018. The total
amount of this agreement is %416, 760.




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decenber 31, 2017
{Continued)

Note 15 Mt. Zion Police Pension Fund -~

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: Reporting Entity, Measurement
Focus and Basis of Accounting. The Mt. Zion Police Pension is a fiduciary
fund of the Village of Mt. Zion, Illinois and is included in the Village’s
fiduciary fund financial statements. It does not issue a stand-alone
financial report. The financial statements of the Plan are prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus and the modified cash basis of
accounting, which is a special purpose framework other than GAAP. Plan
member contributions are recognized in the périod they are withheld. The
Village’'s contributions are recognized when they are received by the Plan.
The Plan’s checking, money market and certificates of deposits are reported
at cost, which approximates fair value., The Plan‘s investments in municipal
bonds and mutual funds are reported at Ffair value. Deposit and investment
accounts are maintained at Prairie State Bank and Trust and Town and Country
Bank, The Fund may only make investments as allowed by Illincis Compiled
Statutes (ILCS).

Plan Description: Administration. On July 18, 2011, the Village of Mt. Zion
created and established a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan for
the full-time officers to provide retirement, disability benefits, post
retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries
in accordance with Article 3 of the Tllinois Pension Code. Tt is governed
by five trustees, The trustees are to be representative of at least one
active duty officer and one eligible beneficiary. Currently, there are no
beneficiaries who meet the eligibility requirements to serve as a trustee,
so that position is filled by an additional current officer. The defined
benefit provisions and employee and employer contribution levels are
governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 5/3-1}) and may only be
amended by the Illinois legiglature. Administrative costs are financed
through investment earnings.

Plan Description: Membership.

Membership in the plan consisted of the following:

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently
Receiving Benefits 1
Inactive Plan Member Entitled to but not yet

Receiving Benefits 2
Active Plan Members 10
Total members i3




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017
{Continued)

Note 15 Mt. Zion Police Pension Fund - (Continued)

Plan Description: Benefits Provided.

The Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. Tier 1 employees (those hired prior to January 1, 2011) attaining
the age of 50 or older with 20 or more years of creditable service are entitled
to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to one-half of the salary
attached to the rank held at the date of retirement. The annual benefit shall
be increased by 2.50% of such salary for each additional year of service over
20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75.00% of such salary. Employees
with at least eight years but less than 20 years of credited service may
retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly benefit
of a covered employee who retired with 20 or more years of service after
January 1, 1277 shall be increased annually, £ollowing the first anniversary
date of retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by
3.00% of the original pension and 3.00% compounded annually thereafter.
Surviving spouses receive 100% of final salary for fatalities resulting from
an act of duty, or otherwise the greater of 50% of £inal salary or the
employee’s retirement benefit,

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January 1, 2011) attaining the age
of 55 or older with 1¢ or more years of creditable service are entitled to
receive an annual retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary
obtained by dividing the total salarxy of the police officer during the 96
consecutive months of service within the last 120 months of service in which
the total salary was the highest by the number of months of service in that
period. Police officers' salary for pension purposes is capped at $ 106,800,
plus the lesser of ¥ of the annual change in the Consumer Price Index or
3.00%. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of such salary for
each additional year of serviee over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of
75.00% of such salary. Employees with at least ten years may retire at or
after age 50 and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., 4% for each momth under
55) . The monthly benefit of a Tier 2 police officer shall he increased
annually at age 60 on the January 1lst after the police officer retires, or
the first anniversary of the pension starting date, whichever is later.
Noncompounding increases occur annually, each Januvary thereafter, The
increase is the lesser of 3.00% or ¥ of the change in the Consumer Price Index
for the proceeding calendar vear. Surviving spouse’s benefits are 66 2/3% of
the Employee’s benefit at the time of death.

Plan Description: Contributions.

Employees are required by ILCS to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to
the Fund. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years
of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without
accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute the remaining
amount necessary to finance the Fund, as actuarially determined by an
enrolled actuary. The 2018 and 2017 tax levy requirements are $304,789 and
384,386, respectively.




VILLAGE OF MT, ZION, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacember 31, 2017
(Continued)

Neote 15 Mt. Zion Police Pension Fund - (Continued)

Village’s Pension Liability.

Total Pension Liability 3,728,837
Pension Plan’'s Fiduciary Net Position 1,361,942
Village’s Net Pension Liability 2,366,895
Pension Plan's Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 36.52%

See the Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
presented as Other Information (Unaudited) for additional information
related to the funded status of the Police Pension Fund.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. In the December 31, 2016 actuarial
valuation, the entry age normal cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included {a) 3.00 percent investment rate of return, (b}
projected salary increases of 4.00 percent and an inflation rate of 2.50
percent, (c} use of the RP 2014 Mortality Table projected to 2017 using
improvement scale MP-2016, (d) State of Illinois DOI experience rates for
withdrawal, disability and retirement {(100% by age 70}, and {e) marital
status at 80 percent with female spouses 3 years younger. The Village’s
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of payroll over a 30 year period which commenced in 2012 (closed
25 year peried)., The Pension Fund has not estimated long-term expected real
rates of return by major asset classes of its investment portfolio.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Total Plan
Pension Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (B} (A)-(B)
Balances at December 31, 2016 $3,910,823 5 972,119 $2,938,704
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 284,482 284,482
Interest on the Total
Pengion Liability 116,672 116,672
Changes of Benefit Terms 0
Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience of
the Total Pension
Liability (518,117) (518,117}
Changes of Assumptions (21,492) (21,492)
Contributions - Employer 365,533 (365,533}
Contributions - Employees 53,533 (53,5323)
Net Investment Income 35,161 (35,161)
Benefit Payments, including
Refunds of Employee
Contributions (43,531} (43,531) 0
Administrative Expenses (20,873} 20,873
Net Changes (181,986} 389,823 (571,809)

Balances at December 31, 2017 $3,728,837 51,361,942 $2,366,895




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decemnber 31, 2017
{Continued)

Note 15 Mt. Zion Peclice Pension Fund - {Continued)

Note 16

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate -
Regular Plan

The following presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a
Single Discount Rate of 3.00%, as well as what the plan’s net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that
is 1% lower or 1% higher:

1% Lower Current Discount + 1% Higher
(2.00%) (3.00%) {4.00%)
Net Pension Liability $3,171,198 $2,366,B95 $1,727,652

Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET)} Convenience Fund Contingency -

On September 29, 2014 IMET was notified that a Repurchase Agreement it had
purchased had bheen fraudulently represented as being secured by guarantees
from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDAR). IMET later learned
that documentation related to the USDA had been falsified and the proceeds
from the transaction had been misappropriated. As a result, on September
30, 2014, IMET placed the Village's share (2.8% of its total account or
$32,429) of the underlying fraudulent investment intc a Liquidating Trust
which is not available to the Village until recoveries can be achieved. Aas
of December 31, 2017, IMET has estimated recoveries from seized assets and
other sources to be 47.6% of the Liquidating Trust. Therefore, the Village
estimates it will realize a loss on its Liguidating Trust of $16,993. IMET
continues to pursue all matters of recovery of the investment; however,
there can be no assurance that the loss will be limited to the estimated
amount of 316,593, As of December 31, 2017, recoveries totaling $1,613 had
been distributed to the Village from the Liquidating Trust.
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VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES DISBURSED - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

General Government - Administration

Salaries 8 58,966 -
Benefits 9,501
Rapairs & Maintenance 4,337
Legal Services 16,118
Janitorial Services 5,980
Postage - 850
Telephone 1,718
Printing & Publications 4,074
Feeas 17,035
Travel & Training 3,573
Dues & Subscriptions 2,110
Utilities 7,020
Supplies & Equipment 6,550
Miscellaneous 290
Econemic Development 27,811
Special Projects 11,074
Tetal CGeneral Government - Administration 5 177,007

General Government - Planning & Zoning

Salaries 55,591
Benefits 8,816
Engineering 5,010
Printing & Publications 42
Fees 349
Dues & Subscriptions 200
Total General Government - Planning & Zoning 70,008

{Continued on next page)




VILLAGE OF MT. ZTON, ILLINOIS
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES DISBURSED -~ MODIFIED CASH BASIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

{Continued)
Public Safety
Salaries § 617,354
Benefits 215,108
Employer Pension Centributions 38,104
Repairs & Maintenance : 15,752
Legal Sarvices 10,284
Janitorial Serviceas 8,515
Contractual Services 1,462
Postage 1,070
Telephone 5,746
Radio Communications 8,100
Printing & Publications 618
Feas 10,014
Travel & Training 11,730
Dues & Subscriptions 1,400
Utilities B,450
Supplies & Equipment 6,041
Miscallaneous 963
Gasoline & 0il 15,915
K9 Grant 1,256
Total Public Safety 5 977,922
Streets and Allays
Salaries 136,287
Benafits 47,670
Repairs & Maintenance 44,981 -
Engineering 81,777
Telephone 3,139
Feas 5,182
Travel & Training 858
Utilities 6,496
Street Lighting 39,197
Supplies & Equipment 15,848
Miscellaneous . 38
Gasoline & QOil 8,900
Total Streets and Alleys 400,373

(Continued on next page)




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS
GENERATL, FUND

SCHEDULE QF EXPENDITURES DISBURSED - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

{Coentinued)
Culture & Recreation - Parks
Salaries $ 104,995
Benefits 24,048
Repairs & Maintenance 9,378
Engineering 24,201
Janitorial Services 10,363
Contractual Services 34,234
Postage 649
Telephone 1,994
Printing & Publications 6,162
Fees 7,072
Travel & Training 406
Dues & Subscriptions 234
Utilities 19,829
Supplies & Equipment 13,709
Miscellaneous 23
Total Culture & Recreation - Parks $§ 257,297

Culture & Recreation - Convention Center

Salaries 50,245
Benefits 15,163
Repairs & Maintenance 11,487
Janitorial Services 16,853
Contractual Services 16,004 -
Postage 886
Telephone 2,316
Printing & Publications 9,858
Fees 1,973
Utilities 4,315
Supplies & Equipment 5,292
Miscellaneous 46
Total Culture & Recreation - Convention Canter 134,438

Capital Outlay

Public Safety 62,403
Streets & Alleys 43,948
Parks 42,900
Convention Center 7,832

Total Capital Outlay $ 157,083
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VILLAGE QF MT. ZION, ILLINQIS
OTHER INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL EXPENDITURES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CASH BASIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Amended / Actual Unexpendad
Final Budget Expenditures Balance

Genaral Fund

General Corporate Purposes 2} 2,920,554 5 2,563,508 357,046
Special Revenue Funds

Audit Fund 25,000 19,010 5,990

Social Security Fund 75,000 65,494 9,506

Liability Insurance Fund 20,9000 69,206 20,794

IMRF Fund 85,000 79,183 5,817

Schoel Crossing Guard Fund 5,500 4,293 1,207

Unemployment Compensation Fund 50,000 3,851 46,049
Capital Projects Funds

General Capital Projects Fund 487,693 0 487,693

Motor Fuel Tax Fund 260,000 69,458 190,542

Special Tax Allocation Fund 412,000 361,774 50,228
Debt Service Funds

Lease Purchase Fund 15, 386 15,385 1

2009 Bond Repayment Fund 314,000 2,405,187 -2,091,187

2010 Bond Repayment Fund 227,480 227,480 0

2016 Bond Repayment Fund 150,300 150,209 g1
Total Governmental Funds 5 5,117,913 $ 6,034,138 -916,225




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS
OTHER INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL EXPENDITURES
CTHER FUNDS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Actual
Expenditures
Amended / {Incl Capital Unexpended
Final Budget Acquizitions) Balance

Proprietary Funds

Water Fund -] 1,928,250 s 1,681,495 246,755

Sewer Fund 454,350 462,764 31,586
Internal Service Fund

Rigk Management Fund 0 0 0
Fiduciary Fund

Polica Pension Fund 76,400 64,404 11,856
Total Other Funds 5 2,499,000 § 2,208,663 290,337




VILLAGE QF MT. ZION, ILLINOQIS

OTHER INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
IMRF REGULAR PLAN

SCHEDULE OF CHRNGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S NET

PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
(SCHEDULE TO BE BUILT PROSPECTIVELY)

2017 2016 2015
Total Pension Liability:
Service Cost 5 66,211 § 67,833 § 57,627
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 458,568 505,360 485,610
Banefit Changes - - -
Difference between Expacted and Actual Experience 30,094 (262,663) 103,830
Assumption Changes {203,538) {7,823) 8,024
Beneflit Payments and Refunds (405,934) {396,754} {378,794)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability {14,597) {54,247 276,297
Total Pension Liability at Beginning of Year 6,817,438 6,911,685 6,635,388
Total Pension Liability at End of Year ] 6,802,841 § 65,817,438 § 6,911,685
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Employer Contributions H 79,182 § 89,097 § 84,225
Employea Contributionsg 33,422 30,146 29,843
Pension Plan Net Investment Income 1,178,467 428,323 31,150
Benefit Paymenta and Refunds {405, 934) (396,754) (378,754)
Othexr (55, 7177) (1e9,890) 174,362
Met Change in Plan Piduciary Net Positicn 829,360 (39,078) {59,214)
Plan Fidugiary Net Pogition at Beginning of Year 6,264,114 6,303,182 6,362,406
Plan Fiduciary Het Position at End of Year § 7,083,474 § 6,264,114 § 6,303,192
Net Pensaion Liability at End of Year § {280,633) § 553,324 § 608,493
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of
Total Pension Liability 104.27% 91,88% 91.20%
Covered Valuation Payroll § 727,76 § 660,906 § 663,101
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of
Covered Valuation Payroll -39.93% 82.60% 41.75%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
until a full 10-year trend is compilad, information is presentead for those years for which information

ia available.




VILLAGE QF MT. ZION, ILLINOILS

OTHER INFORMATION (UMAUDITED)
IMRF REGULAR PLAN
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
(SCHEDULE TO BEE BUILT PROSPECTIVELY)

Actual
Contribution as a

Calendax Aatuarially Contribution Coverad Pexrcentage of
Year Ended Determined Actual Deficiency Valuation Covered valuation
Decerber 31, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
2017 3 79,182 § 79,182 § - & 727,776 10.88%
2016 - 89,164 § 89,097 § 67 % 663,906 13,30%
2015 [ 84,224 % 84,225 3§ (1) § 663,181 12.70%

Valuation Date:

NOTES TO IMRF REGULAR PLAN SCHEDULES

Actuarially determined contributicn rates are calculated as of
December 31 each year, which is 12 months prier to the beginning
of the figecal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine 2017 Contribution Ratesw:

Actuarial Cost Method:
Amortization Method:

Remaining Amortization Period:

Agset Valwation Method:
Wage Growth:
brice Inflation:

Salary Increases:

Investment Rate of Return:

Retirement Age:

Mortality:

Other Information:

Aggregate entry age normal

Level percentage of payroll, closed

26-year closed period Early Retirement Incentive Plan liabilities:
a period up to 10 years selected by the Employer upon adoption

of BRI. SLEP supplemental liabilities attributable to Publig

Act 94-712 were financed over 21 years for most employers

(two employers were Financed over 30 years).

S-year smoothed market; 20% corridor

3.50%

2.75%, approximate; No explicit price inflation assumption is

used in this valuation.

3.75% to 14.50%, including inflation

7.50%

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of
e¢ligibility condition. Last updated for the 2014 valuation pursuant
to an experience study of the period 2011 to 2013,

For non-disabled retirees, an IMRF specific wmortality table was used
with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 {(base year 2012). The
IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health
Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF
experience. For disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table
was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year
2012). The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014
Disabled Retirees Mortality Table applying the same adjustment that
ware applied for non-diabled lives. For active members, an IMRF
specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection
scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF specific rates were developed
from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with adjustments to match
current IMRF experience.

There were nc benefit changes during the year.

* Based on Valuation Assumptions used in the December 31, 2015, actuarial valuation; note two year lag
between wvaluation and rate sebting,

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for thosa years for which information

iz availabla.




VILLAGE OF MT. 2ICN, ILLINOIS

OTHER INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
IMRF SLEF PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S NET
PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YERRS
{SCEEDULE TO BE BUILT PROSPECTIVELY)

2017 2016 2018
Total Pension Liability:
Service Cost [ - 8 - 8 -
Interest on the Total Pensgicon Liability 3,715 3,683 4,104
Benefit Changes - - -
bifference between Expected and Actual Experience 6,692 1,159 (5,412)
Rasumption Changes (1,600} - -
Banafit Payments and Refunds (4,478} {4,364) {4,246)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 4,329 478 (5,554)
Total Pension Liability at Baginning of Year 51,772 51,294 56,848
Total Pension Liability at End of Year § 56,101 § 51,772 § 51,294
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Employar Contributions § - § - & -
Employea Contributicons - - -
Pangion Plan Het Investment Income 15,731 5,229 424
Benefit Payments and Refunds (4,478) {4,364) (4,246)
Other 4,756 1,144 (6,B75)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Poaition 16,009 2,009 {10,697}
Plan Fiduciary Net Position at Beginning of Year 78,141 76,132 86,829
Plan Fiduciary Net Position at End of Year § 44,150 & 78,141 § 76,132
Net Penaion Liability at End of Year § [38,049) § (26,369) $ {24,838}
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of
Total Penslon Liability 167.82% 150,93% 148.42%
Covered Valuation Payroll $ - § - % -
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of
Covered Valuation Payroll 0.00% 0.00% 0. 00%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requiramant to show information for 10 years. However,
until a full 10~year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information
is availablae.




VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLINOIS

OTHER INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
IMRF SLEFP PLAN
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTICHS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
(SCHEDULE TO EE BUILT PROSPECTIVELY)

Actual

Centribution as a

Calendar Actuarially Contribution Coverad Parcentaga of

Year Ended Determined Actual Deficiency Valuation Covered Valuation
December 31, Conktribution Contribution {(Excess) Payroll Payroll
2017 $ - § - § - $ - 0.00%
2016 $ - § - & - & - 0.00%
2015 § - 8 - 8 - 5 - 0.00%

Valuation Date:

NOTES TO IMRF REGULAR PLAN SCHEDULES

Adtuarially determined contribution rates are caleulated as of
Dacember 31 each year, which is 12 months prior to the beginning
of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and Assumptions Used te Determine 2017 Contribution Rates#:

Actuarial Cost Method:
Amortizaticn Method:
Remaining Amortization Period:

Asset Valuation Method:
Wage Growth:
Price Inflation:

Salary Increases:
Investment Rate of Return:
Retirement Age:

Mortality:

Other Information:

Aggregate enbtry age normal

Level percentage of payroll, closed

26-year closed period Early Retirement Incentive Plan liabilities:
a pericd up to 10 years selected by the Employer upon adoption

of ERI. SLEP supplemental liabilities attributable to Public

Act 94-712 were financed over 21 years for most employers

{two employers were financed over 30 years).

5-year smoothed market; 20% corridor

3.50%

2.75%, approximate; No explicit price inflation assumption is

used in this valuation.

3.75% to 14.50%, including inflation

7.50%

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of
eligibility condition. Last updated for the 2014 valuation pursuant
to an experience study of the period 2011 to 2013.

For non-disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used
with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012}, The
IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health
Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMREF
experience. For disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table
was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year
2012}. The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014
Digabled Retirees Mortality Table applying the same adjustment that
were applied for non-diabled lives. For active members, an IMRF
specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection
scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF specific.rates were developed
from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with adjustments tc match
current IMRF experience,

There were no benefit changes during the year,

* Bagsed on Valuation Assumptions uged in the December 31, 2015, actuarial valuation; note two year lag
batween valuation and rate setting.

This schedule is presented to
until a full 10-year trend is
is available.

iliustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
compiled, information is presanted for those years for which information




TOTAL PENSION LTABILITY
Service Cost
Interaat
Changes in Banefit Terms
Diffarances Batwaen Expectad
and Actual Experience
Changes of Assumpticns

Benefit Paymenta, Including Refunds

of Member Ceontributions

Net Change in Total Pension Liability

Total Pensicn Liability - Beginning

Total Pension Liability - Ending

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions -~ Employer
Contributiona - Membar
Het Inveatment Incomo

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds

of Member Contributions
Administrative Expense

Kot Change in Plan Fiduciary Wet Pesition
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Baginning

Plan Fiduciary Net Pogition - Ending

NET PENSIOR LIABILITY

#lan Fiduciary Nat Position as Parcentage of the

Total Penaion Liability

Covarad-Employee Payroil

Het Pension Liability as a Percentage of

Covared-Enployea Payroll

VILLAGE OF MT. ZION, ILLIHOES

OTHER INPORMATION (UNAUDITED)
MT. ZION POLICE PENSION FUND

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S WET

PEHSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

LAST TEN FISCAL PERIODS ENDED

(SCHEDULE TO BE BUILT PROSPECTIVELY)

12 Months Ended

8 Honths Ended

Year Ended

Year Endad

Decambezr 31, 2017 D kar 31, 2016 April 30, 2016 _April 3¢, 2015
284,482 § 200,153 § 268,519 § 110,598
116,672 111,222 85,177 50,7714

(518,117} {26,017) 235,256 14,896
(21,492} {167,410) 316,441 980, 442
{43,531) {29,021} (39, 463) -

{181,986} 188,927 g962,930 1,166,514

3,510,823 3,721,896 2,858,966 1,692,456
3,728,837 § 3,910,823 3% 3,721,896 § 2,858,966
365,533 296,358 134,769 152,313
53,533 35,480 50,218 47,428
35,161 6,130 21,993 7,077
(43,531) (29,021) {39,463} -
(20, 873) (13,773) {23,994) {21,155}
389,823 295,174 143,523 185,663
972,119 676,945 533,422 347,759
1,361,942 § 972,119 § 676,945 § 533,422
2,366,895 % 2,938,704 § 3,044,951 § 2,309,585
==
36.52% 24.86% 18.19% 18.66%
514,382 357,060 505,8E8 539,715
460.14% 823.03% 601.90% 427.92%

This schedule is presunted to illustrate the requiremant to show information for 10 yeara. Howevaer,
until a full 10-ysar trend is compiled, information is pressnted for those years for which information

is available.




VILLAGE OF MT, ZION, ILLINQIS

OTHER INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
MT. ZI0ON POLICE PENSION FUND

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL PERICDS ENDED

(SCHEDULE TO BE BUILT PROSPECTIVELY)

Actual
Contribution as a

Agtuarially Contribution Covered Parcentage of
Fiscal Determined Actual Deficiency Valuation Covered Valuation
Period Ended Contribution Contribution (Excass) Payroll Payroll
Dac. 31, 2017 § 377,904 § 365,533 ] 12,371 $§ 514,382 71.06%
Dec. 31, 2016 § 296,815 § 296,358 § 457 8 519,811 57.01%
Apr. 30, 2016 $ 126,907 § 134,769 § {7,862) § 505,888 26.64%
Apr. 30, 2015 § 153,087 § 152,313 § 774 § 539,716 28.22%
NOTES TO MT, ZION POLICE PENSION FUND SCHEDULES
Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of

December 31 each year, which is 12 months prior to the beginning
of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported:

Methods and Assumptions Used to Datermine 2017 Contribution Rates*:

Actuarial Cost Method: hggregate entry age normal
Amortization Method: Level percentage of payroll, closed
Remaining Amcrtization Period: 24 years

Asset Valuation Method: Market Value

Inflation: 2.50%

Salary Increases: 4.00%

Investment Rate of Return: 3.00%

Retirement Age: Uniform distribution from ages 50-70 (100% by age 70)

Mortality: RP 2014 Mortality Table (BCHR) projected to 2018 using improvement

scale MP-2017.

Qthar Information: There were no benefit chahges during the year.

* Tha other non-economic actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on
the results of an actuarial experience study conducted by the Illinois bDepartment of Insuranhce (GRS)

in 2017.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the reguirement to show information for 10 vyears, Howaver,
until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information

is availabls.




VILLAGE OF MT. ZICN, ILLINOIS

OTHER INFORMATION (UNAUDITED}
MT. ZION POLICE PENSION FUND
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
LAST TEN FISCAL PERIODS ENDED
{SCHEDULE TC BE BUILT PROSPECTIVELY)

Year 8 Months Yaar Year
Endad Ended Ended Ended
becember Degember April 30, April 30,
31, 2017 31, 2016 2016 2015
Annual Money-Weighted Rate of
Return, Net of Investment Expense 1.84% 1.61% 1.47% 1,33%

This sachedule is presented to illustrate the requirement te show information for 10 years. Howaevar,
until a full 10-year trend is compiled, informaticn is presented for those years for which information
is avallable.




